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Direct: (865) 316-9626 
Email: das@lyblaw.net  

August 10, 2022 

Knoxville-Knox County Planning Commission 
400 Main Street, Suite 403 
Knoxville, Tennessee 37902 
Re: Planning Commission File No. 8-C-22-SU 
 Applicant:  Thomas R. Gass / Andy’s Frozen Yogurt  
 Address: 6217 Kingston Pike / Parcel ID 121AA023 
Dear Chairman Hill and Planning Commissioners: 

This firm represents Dr. Amanda Pittman, the Animal Wellness and Rehabilitation 
Center, PLLC (“AWRC”), and Brown Bear Properties, LLC (“Brown Bear”), in opposition to 
the above referenced application for a drive-through special use permit.  Dr. Pittman has been a 
licensed veterinarian for 17 years.  She has expertise in in small animal medicine, surgery, and 
physical rehabilitation.  For the past 4 years she has maintained her practice at 6221 Kingston 
Pike on property immediately to the west of the proposed new drive through facility.  We 
respectfully request that the commission deny the special use application.  

1. The proposed plan shows unauthorized demolition and construction on Dr. 
Pittman’s property. 

Dr. Pittman has no objection to an ice cream shop being located near her veterinary 
practice. She objects to the drive-through facility because it will cause significant adverse 
impacts to her property.  At a minimum, Planning Commission should not approve a special 
use that will result in an encroachment onto neighboring property.  The revised site plan in this 
case shows demolition and construction on Dr. Pittman’s property.  Dr. Pittman has not 
authorized any demolition or construction on her property.   

  
Figure 1 - Demolition Encroachment  Figure 2 - Construction Encroachment  
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2. The drive-through will cause constant trespass on Dr. Pittman’s property. 
Dr. Pittman’s property has a shared driveway easement with the subject property.1  The 

shared driveway extends from Kingston Pike along a portion of the common side property line, 
terminating approximately 55’ from the rear property line.  The proposed drive-through facility 
would utilize the shared driveway to the point of termination.  At that point, cars using the 
drive-through must remain within 12’ of a terminal island in the proposed parking lot to avoid 
trespassing on Dr. Pittman’s property.  Vehicles traveling down the center of the shared 
driveway to access the drive-through will constantly trespass on Dr. Pittman’s property.  The 
dumpster pad configuration will cause garbage trucks to trespass on Dr. Pittman’s property 
when removing waste from the subject property.  

 
Figure 3 - Trespass Area 

3. The drive-through facility will violate Dr. Pittman’s parking easement and 
create unsafe points of conflict for Dr. Pittman’s clients.  

In addition to a shared driveway, Dr. Pittman has a parking easement on the subject 
property.  The parking easement entitled Dr. Pittman to “eight (8) designated parking spaces for 
the use of [her] tenants and patrons…” Plans for the proposed new drive-through show 
demolition of Dr. Pittman’s designated spaces.  Dr. Pittman has not agreed to any modification 
of her parking easement.    

The drive-through facility will create additional traffic and several new points of vehicle 
and pedestrian conflict that are a danger to Dr. Pittman’s clients and to ice cream shop patrons.  
The shared driveway and proposed drive-through exit creates an uncontrolled five-way 
intersection.2  The problem is compounded by the angled approach for cars exiting the 
proposed drive-through.3  There is broad agreement that right-angle intersections are the 
preferred design and that “skewed” intersections should be avoided.   

 
1 A copy of the Joint Driveway Agreement is attached hereto as Exhibit A. The agreement is recorded as instrument 
number 198312300022009, Warranty Book 1806, page 402, in the office of the Knox County Register of Deeds.  
The easement is referenced in the current deed of record for the subject property.  
2 Figure 4.  
3 See, Highway Design Handbook for Older Drivers and Pedestrians, Sec. I, Intersections 
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/publications/research/safety/humanfac/01103/ch1.cfm#a (Accessed August 10, 2022).  

https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/publications/research/safety/humanfac/01103/ch1.cfm#a
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The proposal also shows three new 90-degree parking spaces along the side of the 
shared driveway.  These spaces do not have the minimum 26’ aisle width required for two-way 
traffic under Sec. 11.5(B) and Table 11.6 of the City of Knoxville Zoning Ordinance.  If Dr. 
Pittman’s clients are required use any of the new parking spaces on the subject property, they 
will be required to cross the increased drive-through traffic to access Dr. Pittman’s clinic.  The 
increased traffic together with the uncontrolled points of conflict will create a dangerous 
condition.  

  
Figure 4 – Uncontrolled Five-Way Intersection   Figure 5 – Inadequate Drive Aisle Width  

 

Figure 6 – Vehicle and Pedestrian Conflict Area 

4. The proposed drive-through facility will cause noise, lights, fumes, odors, 
vibrations, and traffic that will significantly injure Dr. Pittman’s property.  

Drive through-facilities special use approval because of the adverse impacts that 
naturally accompany such uses.  These adverse impacts include noise, lights, fumes, odors, 
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vibrations, and traffic. These uses are specifically identified in Sec. 16.2(F)(2)(e) of the 
Knoxville Zoning Ordinance as a basis for denying a special use application.   

The proposed drive-through will cause significant adverse impacts to Dr. Pittman’s 
property.  The proposed drive-through is located within feet of Dr. Pittman’s building and 
almost entirely between Dr. Pittman’s property and the building it will service.  The drive-
through (and the stacking of vehicles at the drive-through service window) will substantially 
increase in noise, lights, fumes, odors, vibrations, and traffic perceptible from Dr. Pittman’s 
property.  The natural consequence of these impacts will be to significantly injure the value of 
Dr. Pittman’s property.   

5. A portion of the proposed drive-through lane is located between the building 
and Kingston Pike.  

Sec. 9.3(F)(6) of the City of Knoxville Zoning Ordinance prohibits placing drive 
through windows or lanes “between the street and the associated building.”  The plan submitted 
by the applicant in this case clearly depicts a portion of the drive-through lane located between 
the building and the street.   

 
Figure 7 - Drive-Through Lane Between Building and Street 

In addition to the foregoing, the applicant has failed to reach out to Dr. Pittman for any 
comment on the proposed development.  This is not the kind of open and cooperative planning 
process your rules and regulations seek to achieve.   

For all of the foregoing reasons, the proposed drive-through facility will cause 
significant injury to Dr. Pittman’s property.  We respectfully request that the special use 
application be denied.  Please contact me if you have further questions.  
 

Very truly yours, 

 
Daniel A. Sanders 

cc:  Client 
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